
 
 
 

 
OVERVIEW & SCRUTINY COMMITTEE  Contact: Elaine Huckell 

Scrutiny Officer 
Wednesday, 31 May 2017 at 9.30 am  Direct: 020-8379-3530 
Room 3, Civic Centre, Silver Street, Enfield, 
EN1 3XA 

 Tel: 020-8379-1000 
  
 E-mail: elaine.huckell@enfield.gov.uk 

 Council website: www.enfield.gov.uk 

 
Councillors : Derek Levy (Chair), Abdul Abdullahi, Guney Dogan, Nneka Keazor, 
Michael Rye OBE and Edward Smith 
 
 
Education Statutory Co-optees: 1 vacancy (Church of England diocese 
representative), Simon Goulden (other faiths/denominations representative), Tony 
Murphy (Catholic diocese representative), Alicia Meniru & 1 vacancy (Parent 
Governor Representative). 
 
Enfield Youth Parliament Co-optees (2) 
Support Officer – Claire Johnson (Governance & Scrutiny Manager) 
Elaine Huckell (Governance & Scrutiny Officer) 
 

 
AGENDA – PART 1 

 
1. WELCOME & APOLOGIES   
 
2. DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST   
 
 Members of the Council are invited to identify any disclosable pecuniary, 

other pecuniary or non-pecuniary interests relevant to items on the agenda. 
 

3. CALL-IN OF REPORT: MERIDIAN WATER: LAND ACQUISITION  (Pages 
1 - 26) 

 
 To receive a report from the Executive Director of Finance, Resources & 

Customer Services outlining a Call-In received for consideration by Overview 
& Scrutiny on the following reason: (Report No:6) 
 
Portfolio Decision included on Publication of Decision List No:5/17-18 Key 
Decision 4442 (List Ref: 4/5/17-18) issued on 26 May 2017. 
 
It is proposed that consideration of the Call-In be structured as follows: 

 Brief outline of reasons for the Call-In by representative (s) of the 
Members who have called in the decision. 

 Response to the reasons provided for the Call-In by the Cabinet 
member responsible for taking the decision. 

Public Document Pack



 Debate by Overview & Scrutiny Committee and agreement on action 
to be taken. 

 
 
 

4. EXCLUSION OF PRESS & PUBLIC   
 
 To consider, if necessary, passing a resolution under Section 100A(4) of the 

Local Government Act 1972 excluding the press and public from the meeting 
for the item of business listed in Part 2 of the agenda on the grounds that it 
will involve the likely disclosure of exempt information as defined in those 
paragraphs of Part 1 Schedule 12A to the Act (as amended by the Local 
Government (Access to Information) (Variation) Order 2006), as are listed on 
the agenda (Members are asked to refer to the Part 2 agenda) 
 

PART 2 AGENDA 
 

5. PART 2 AGENDA CALL IN RE: MERIDIAN WATER LAND ACQUISITION  
(Pages 27 - 86) 

 
 Attached for consideration as part of the call-in on this item, is the Part 2 

Portfolio report. 
 
The report should be read in conjunction with the Portfolio report attached at 
Appendix 1 to the Call-In report on the Part 1 agenda. 
 
(This document contains exempt information as defined in Paragraph 3 
(information relating to the financial or business affairs of any particular 
person (including the authority holding that information)) of Schedule 12A to 
the Local Government Act 1972 as amended). 
 

 
 

 



MUNICIPAL YEAR 2017/2018 REPORT NO. 6           
  

 
MEETING TITLE AND DATE:  
Overview & Scrutiny 
Committee,  
31 May 2017 
 
REPORT OF: 
Executive Director of Finance, 
Resources and Customer 
Services 
 
Contact officers and telephone 
numbers: 
Asmat Hussain, Assistant Director Legal and Governance 
Tel: 020 8379 6438 
Email: asmat.hussain@enfield.gov.uk 
Claire Johnson, Interim Governance Team Manager  
Tel: 020 8379 4239 
E mail: claire.johnson@enfield.gov.uk 
 
 

  
1. EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 
  
1.1 This report details a call-in submitted in relation to the following decision: 

Portfolio Decision by Cabinet Member for Economic Development and 
the Cabinet Member for Finance & Efficiency : Meridian Water: Land 
Acquisition. 
 

1.2 Details of this decision were included on Publication of Decision List No. 4/5- 
(Ref. 1/1/17-18 – issued on 26 May 2017).  

  

1.3 In accordance with the Council’s Constitution, Overview and Scrutiny 
Committee is asked to consider the decision that has been called-in for 
review. 

 

1.4 
 
 

The members who have called-in this decision do not believe it falls outside of 
the Council’s Policy Framework. 

 

 

  
2. RECOMMENDATIONS 
 
2.1 

 
That Overview and Scrutiny Committee considers the called-in decision and 

Subject: Meridian Water: Land Acquisition 

Wards: Upper Edmonton and Edmonton 
Green 
Key Decision No: 4442 

 
  

Agenda – Part: 1 
  
 

Cabinet Member consulted: N/A  

Item:  

Page 1 Agenda Item 3



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

either: 

(a) Refers the decision back to the decision making person or body for 
reconsideration setting out in writing the nature of its concerns.  The 
decision making person or body then has 14 working days in which to 
reconsider the decision; or 

(b) Refer the matter to full Council; or 

(c) Confirm the original decision. 

 
Once the Committee has considered the called-in decision and makes one of 
the recommendations listed at (a), (b) or (c) above, the call-in process is 
completed.  A decision cannot be called in more than once. 
 
If a decision is referred back to the decision making person or body; the 
implementation of that decision shall be suspended until such time as the 
decision making person or body reconsiders and either amends or confirms 
the decision, but the outcome on the decision should be reached within 14 
working days of the reference back.  The Committee will subsequently be 
informed of the outcome of any such decision. 

 
3. BACKGROUND/INTRODUCTION 
 
3.1 Please refer to Section 3 in the Portfolio Decision Report. 
 
4. ALTERNATIVE OPTIONS CONSIDERED 
 

None – Under the terms of the call-in procedure within the Council’s 
Constitution, Overview & Scrutiny Committee is required to consider 
any eligible decision called-in for review.  The alternative options 
available to Overview & Scrutiny Committee under the Council’s 
Constitution, when considering any call-in, have been detailed in 
section 2 above. 
 

5. REASONS FOR RECOMMENDATIONS 
 

To comply with the call-in procedure within the Council’s Constitution. 
 

6. COMMENTS OF THE DIRECTOR OF FINANCE, RESOURCES AND 
CUSTOMER SERVICES AND OTHER DEPARTMENTS 

 
6.1 Financial Implications 
 
The financial implications relating to the called-in decision have been 
detailed in the Part 2 Portfolio Decision Report.   

Page 2



 
 
6.2 Legal Implications  
 

 S 21, S 21A-21C Local Government Act 2000, s.19 Police and Justice 
 Act 2006 and regulations made under s.21E Local Government Act 
 2000 define the functions of the Overview and Scrutiny 
 committee.  The functions  of the committee include the ability to 
 consider, under the call-in  process, decisions of Cabinet, Cabinet 
 Sub-Committees, individual Cabinet Members or of officers under 
 delegated authority. 
  
 Part 4, Section 18 of the Council’s Constitution sets out the procedure 
 for call-in. Overview and Scrutiny Committee, having considered the 
 decision may: refer it back  to the decision making person or body for 
 reconsideration; refer to full Council or confirm the original decision.  
  
 The Constitution also sets out at section 18.2, decisions that are 
 exceptions to the call-in process.  
 

6.3 Property Implications  
 
The property implications relating to the called-in decision have been 
detailed in Section 6.3 of the Portfolio Decision Report.   
 

7. KEY RISKS  
 

The key risks identified relating to the called-in decision have been 
detailed in the Portfolio Decision Report. 
 

8. IMPACT ON COUNCIL PRIORITIES  
 

The way in which the called-in decision impacts on the Council priorities 
relating to fairness for all, growth and sustainability and strong 
communities have been detailed in the Portfolio Decision Report.  
 

9. EQUALITIES IMPACT IMPLICATIONS  
 

The equalities impact implications relating to the called-in decision 
have been detailed in the Portfolio Decision Report. 
 

10. PERFORMANCE MANAGEMENT IMPLICATIONS  
 
The performance management implications identified relating to the 
called-in decision have been detailed in the Portfolio Decision Report. 
 

11. HEALTH AND SAFETY IMPLICATIONS 
 
The health and safety implications identified relating to the called-in 
decision have been detailed in the Portfolio Decision Report. 

Page 3



 
12. PUBLIC HEALTH IMPLICATIONS  
 

The public health implications identified relating to the called-in 
decision have been detailed in the Portfolio Decision Report. 
 

Background Papers 
None 

Page 4



 

   

 

 

 

APPENDIX 1 
 
 

 
Call-In: Portfolio Decision: Meridian Water: 
Land Acquisition  

Page 5



This page is intentionally left blank



MERIDIAN WATER GOVERNANCE MAP DAR Part 1 - Appendix 1

Housing Zone Leader Housing Zone Member Oversight Advisory Group

Member Chair

Oversight Group Leader

GLA/LBE/Barratts Strategic Group

Chair Housing Zone Chief Executive Housing Zone Strategic Group

Ian Davis Strategic Group Chair

Rick Blakeway Chief Executive

Partnership Group Partnership Housing Zone Housing Zone Programme Board

Chair Group Programme Board Chair

AD Regeneration & Planning AD Regeneration & 

Planning

Stakeholder Advisory Group Meridian Water Meridian Water Programme Board

Chair: Programme 

Management Lead 

Consultant

GLA; TfL, National Rail, National Grid, 

 GLA/LBE Strategic 

Meeting Programme Board

Programme 

Management 

Lead Consultant

Chair: Programme 

Management Lead 

Consultant

Development and Commercial Principal Consultant; Land and Property Principal Consultant; Socio-economic Principla 

Consultant; Enabling and Building Works Principal Consultant; Project Accountant.

Project Delivery Group Project Development Socio-

Chair Delivery & Commercial Economic

AD Reg & Plan Group Workstream Workstream

Meanwhile use Programme Board Land & Enabling &

Chair Property Building Works

Director F, R &CS Workstream Workstream

Key

Internal meeting cycle managed by MW (Programme Planner & reporting consultant)

Master Developer/

Enfield

Deputy Mayor Housing (GLA), Cex, Director Regeneration & 

Planning, MD Barratts, Programme Director Barratts, AD 

Regeneration and Planning. Programme Managament LC

MD Barratt London, PM Barrats, Programe Management Lead 

Consultant, Dev and Com Principal Consultant

Programme Management Lead Consultant; Socio-economic 

Principal Consultant; Project Accountant; Property

Enfield - Barratt 

interface between 

lead members, 

officers and Barratt's 

MD Barratt London; Barratt Programme Director, Leader, Cllr 

Sitkin, Cllr Okyener

Overview and joint  

meeting for key 

stakeholders e.g. GLA

Assistant 

Director 

Regeneration & 

Planning

Monitors delivery of 

Meanwhile income

4 inter-linking workstreams drive 

the delivery processes for the 

programme

Director Finance, Resources and Customer Services, Director Regeneration and Environment, Assistant Director 

Regeneration & Planning, Property Consultant; Assistant Director Finance, Resources and Customer Services.

Cllr Achilleas Georgiou; Cllr Sitkin; Cllr Ahmet Oykener; Director F,R & CS; Director Regeneration and Planning: AD 

Regeneration and Planning; Programme Management Lead Consultant; Chief Executive.

Programme Managament Lead Consultant; Development and Commercial Principal Consultant; Land and Property Principla 

Consultant; Socio-economic Principla Consultant; Enabling and Building Works Principal Consultant.

Monitors and directs progress 

and performance, agrees tactics 

and escalates decision making

Enfield-Barratt - day to day decision making to 

ensure programme is progressing

Ensures members have 

oversight of the programme, 

strategic priorities are 

embedded and outcomes 

focused

Focus on key strategic 

outcomes, high level programme 

monitoring

Monitors programme in terms of 

key actions and workstreams

GLA/LBE/Barratts 

Strategic Group

P
age 7



T
his page is intentionally left blank



 

RE 17/14 P Part 1                                         1 

MUNICIPAL YEAR 2017/2018 REPORT NO.       

 
 
ACTION TO BE TAKEN UNDER  
DELEGATED AUTHORITY 
 
PORTFOLIO DECISION OF: 
Cabinet Member for Economic  
Development and Business Regeneration 
And the Cabinet Member for Finance and 
Efficiency in consultation with the  
Executive Director of Regeneration and  
Environment and the Executive Director of  
Finance, Resources and Customer Services 
 

Contact officer and telephone number:  

Paul Gardner 0208 3794754 
Email: paul.gardner@enfield.gov.uk  
 
Peter George 020 8379 3318 
E mail: peter.george@enfield.gov.uk 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Subject: Meridian Water: Land 
Acquisition 
 

  

Agenda – Part: 1
  

Wards: Upper Edmonton & 
Edmonton Green  
 

KD Num: 4442 

1. EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 
  
1.1 On 9 May 2017 Cabinet (KD4442) approved the terms of the Agreement for 

Sale for the purchase of the two sites in the east of Meridian Water: Stonehill 
Estate (Stonehill) and (Hastingwood) subject to the demonstration of overall 
viability of the Meridian Water scheme. 
 

1.2 Authority to approve the overall viability of the Meridian Water scheme is 
delegated to the Cabinet Member for Economic Regeneration and Business 
Development and the Cabinet Member for Finance and Efficiency in 
consultation with the Executive Director Regeneration & Environment and the 
Executive Director Finance, Resources and Customer Services. 
 

1.3 Stonehill and Hastingwood (the Sites) are located on the east of the River Lea 
Navigation (the East Bank) which is currently designated as Strategic Industrial 
Land (SIL). The Council is working to secure release of SIL through the 
planning policy process and through negotiations with the Greater London 
Authority (GLA). This report summarises the planning context and sets out 
propositions for mitigating proposed release of SIL through the principle of “no 
net loss of SIL” whereby any release of SIL from the East Bank should be 
compensated for through re-designation of SIL elsewhere in the borough.  
 
 
 

 
 

 
 

Page 9

mailto:paul.gardner@enfield.gov.uk
mailto:peter.george@enfield.gov.uk


 

RE 17/14 P Part 1                                         2 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
3. BACKGROUND 
 
 
3.1 On 9 May 2017 Cabinet (KD4442) approved the terms of the Agreement for 

Sale for the purchase of the two sites in the east of Meridian Water: 
Stonehill Estate (Stonehill) and (Hastingwood) subject to the 
demonstration of overall viability of the Meridian Water scheme. 

 
3.2 The two large Sites, currently in private ownership together comprise c. 32 

acres of land (c. 13 hectares) (see Red Line plan appended to Part 2 of the 
report). An addition of this land to the Council portfolio would take the total 
land holdings in Council ownership up to c. 87 acres (c. 35 hectares) or c. 
64% of the developable land in Meridian Water. 

 

 
2. RECOMMENDATIONS 
 
2.1 To note that the overall financial viability of the Meridian Water scheme is 

positive in each scenario considered for the purchase of Stonehill and 

Hastingwood, as set out in detail in Part 2 of this report. 

 

2.2 To authorise proceeding with the purchase of the Stonehill Industrial Estate 

(Stonehill) and Hastingwood Industrial Estate (Hastingwood) as per the 

recommendations in  sections 2.2 – 2.4  of Part 1 of the Report to Cabinet 9th 

May 2017 (KD 4442). 

 

2.3 To note the ongoing work to achieve a release of Strategic Industrial Land 

(SIL) at Meridian Water through the planning process. 

 

 

 
 
 

  

 
1. EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 
 
1.4 This report sets out the alternative and mitigation options for the Sites should, 

in the worst case scenario, the Council not be able to secure any release of 

SIL. PwC have been commissioned to illustrate the potential impact of these 

scenarios against the base financial model for Meridian Water. This work 

highlights that even if no SIL release is achieved, the Council could deliver a 

scaled down project that is still viable and delivers a financial return to the 

Council by the end of the scheme. 

 
  

Page 10



 

RE 17/14 P Part 1                                         3 

3.3 Further information about the Sites and the terms of acquisition are provided 
in the Cabinet report (KD4442). 

 
3.4 The focus of this Delegated Authority Report is to test the potential impact 

on the overall viability of the Meridian Water Scheme by modelling different 
scenarios in the context of the option to purchase of Stonehill & 
Hastingwood. The assumptions and inputs for the scenarios have been 
provided by the Meridian Water team and Jones Lang LaSalle (JLL), who 
have advised on projections for meanwhile income, land values, and 
residential sale values. PricewaterhouseCoopers (PwC), have provided 
financial analysis of the impact of different scenarios on the base financial 
model for Meridian Water. 

 
 
Planning Context 
 
 
3.5 The current London Plan was adopted in March 2016. The new London 

Plan is in the early stages of preparation and is timetabled for adoption in 
2019. Meridian Water is in the Upper Lee Valley Opportunity Area, and in 
October 2015 was designated as a Housing Zone. 

 
3.6 London Borough of Enfield Core Strategy commits the Council to meeting 

the housing growth targets as set out in the London Plan, namely to 
provide at least 11,000 homes in the 15-year period to 2025. The Core 
Strategy is currently being revised, with more ambitious housing targets 
responding to demographic change and higher housing demand in the 
borough. 

 
3.7 The Proposed Submission Edmonton Leeside Area Action Plan (ELAAP), 

the local area Planning Policy document that covers Meridian Water, was 
approved by Full Council on 25 January 2017. The Area Action Plan 
(preciously called the Central Leeside Area Action Plan (CLAAP)) was 
revised to respond to changed circumstances including the award of 
Housing Zone status, a need for more homes and jobs, Council purchase 
of land, developing proposals for Crossrail 2 and the procurement of a 
development partner for Meridian Water. The ELAAP consultation period 
was to 28th April 2017, and the Local Planning Authority is currently 
considering the submissions. 

 
3.8 The eastern area of Meridian Water, between the River Lee Navigation 

and the River Lea (the East Bank) (where Stonehill and Hastingwood are 
located) is currently designated as Strategic Industrial Land (SIL). The 
ELAAP proposes the removal of the SIL designation that currently covers 
this 18 hectare area of land called “Harbet Road Industrial Estate”. The 
document included substantial modelling evidence that demonstrates that 
de-designation is necessary in order to release the land to achieve the 
project’s scheme-wide ambition of 10,000 homes and 6,700 jobs. 

 

Page 11



 

RE 17/14 P Part 1                                         4 

3.9 The Greater London Authority (GLA) commissioned AECOM in 2015 to 
undertake a strategic review of industrial land in London. The report found 
that the amount of industrial land in London has been steadily falling since 
2000 from c. 8.2k hectares in 2001 to c. 7k hectares in 2015 (a 16% 
contraction). The report also found that the amount of land designated as 
SIL has contracted by 7% since 2010. For Locally Significant Industrial 
Sites (designated at the Council level), the rate of decline is even more 
marked at 25% since 2010. Crucially, the report found that “past trends in 
industrial land release show an accelerated rate of release significantly 
above the LGA’s Land for Industry and Transport SPOG benchmark rates 
of release”. The trend rate of release for 2010 to 2015 is 105 hectares per 
annum compared with the SPG recommended rate of release of 37 
hectares per annum.  The report concluded that London is losing SIL at an 
unsustainable rate.1 In response to the report, the GLA is considering how 
to protect essential employment land whilst also enabling equally important 
residential-led mixed use development. 

 
3.10 The Council has not yet received a formal response from the GLA to the 

ELAAP consultation. However, the GLA has expressed concern over the 
loss of industrial land due to recent studies showing higher than expected 
levels of loss across London and a high level of demand for industrial land 
uses.  The Council is in ongoing discussions with the GLA, including 
examining the potential for the ELAAP to partially release SIL at the Harbet 
Road industrial estate on the basis of no net loss.  Further de-designation 
of SIL at Harbet Road can be assessed through the new Local Plan 
process, including the potential for allocation of new, offsetting SIL in other 
parts of the borough.  

 
3.11 GLA have also verbally said that they would support development with 

ground floor commercial and upper floor residential, and are currently 
exploring a new planning designation to achieve this. 

 
3.12 In response to concerns raised, therefore, the Local Planning Authority will 

need to prepare a supplementary document that will propose modifications 
to the ELAAP reflecting an agreed position with the GLA. This may include 
a staged approach to the SIL release (reflecting a borough wide-strategy of 
no-net loss of SIL), and the development of a new designation allowing a 
mixed use typology with commercial on the ground floor and residential on 
the upper floors.  

 
3.13 The table overleaf breaks down the Council’s proposed stages for SIL 

release in Meridian Water or mitigation measures to enable the type of 
mixed-use development proposed. 

 
 
 
 
 

                                            
1
 AECOM, London Industrial Land Supply & Economy Study, March 2016. P.2 (Exec Summary) 

Page 12



 

RE 17/14 P Part 1                                         5 

 
 
 

Proposed Stages for SIL Release from the East Bank of Meridian Water 

Stage of SIL Release/ Retention Area of SIL 
(Ha) 

Timescale 

SEGRO site is being retained as 
SIL for e-commerce centre 

3 hectares 
retained 

No Change 

Release of SIL through 
compensatory equivalent within the 
ELAAP boundary (excl. Deephams) 

5 hectares 
released 

July 2018 
(adoption 
of ELAAP) 

Further release of SIL through 
compensatory equivalent within 
LBE through the Local Plan 
 
and/or 
 
Development of new designation 
allowing a mixed use typology with 
commercial on the ground floor and 
residential on the upper floors 
 

10 hectares 
released 
or  

re-designated 

December 
2018/2019 
(adoption 
of Local 
Plan) 

Total East Bank SIL 18 hectares  

 
 
3.14 It is important to remember that residential development is not proposed 

for the East Bank until the late 2020s. The ELAAP covers the whole of 
Meridian Water, and the broader proposal for the area of a substantial 
residential-led development has received support in the consultation 
process. As the revised-ELAAP moves towards full adoption next year, this 
will provide the planning policy support for the next phases of development 
at Meridian Water including the delivery of thousands of homes and 
comprehensive regeneration of this part of Enfield.  

 
Viability Options Appraisal 

 
 
3.15 When assessing the options below in relation to the Meridian Water 

scheme, viability is defined as the Council being able to recoup its 
investment in the project, i.e. that the post-finance return for any option is 
positive. 
 

3.16 As explained above, our base business plan for Meridian Water assumes 
that over the course of 5-10 years, we will achieve planning policy support 
for full SIL release in the East Bank. Our Base financial model therefore 
assumes the delivery of 10,000 homes and 6,700 jobs including residential-
led mixed use development on the East Bank. This financial model shows 
that the Meridian Water scheme as a whole is viable, producing a net 
positive return to the Council at the end of the scheme. However, in 

Page 13



 

RE 17/14 P Part 1                                         6 

mitigation of the risk that SIL release is not achieved, it is prudent to 
consider alternative scenarios. 

 
3.17 We are modelling two alternative scenarios: Do not buy 

Stonehill/Hastingwood; and Buy Stonehill/Hastingwood, hold for ten years 
and then sell the Sites on the assumption that SIL is not released. Note that 
a “buy later” scenario (i.e. buy the Sites in ten years’ time) was ruled out in 
the Cabinet Report (KD 4442) due to the prohibitive cost of this option 
(please see Section 4.2 of the Cabinet Report). 

 
3.18 In summary the three scenarios, including the base case, are as follows: 
 

1. The Council buys the Stonehill and Hastingwood Sites, and proceeds 
with mixed-use development as set out in the Base Case Scenario 
(assumes full SIL release on the East Bank); 

2. The Council buys the Sites, holds the Sites until 2027 and then sells 
the Sites (assumes no SIL release on the East Bank); 

3. The Council does not buy the Stonehill and Hastingwood Sites; 
 
3.19 Scenario 1: Full SIL Release: Base Case Scenario 
 

This current base case scenario assumes full SIL release and mixed-use 
development on the East Bank in line with the Barratt London Master Plan 
(September 2016). The outputs of Scenario 1 are 10,000 homes and 6,700 
jobs.2 

 
3.20 Scenario 2:  No SIL Release – Reduced Scheme 
 

This Scenario is the worst case scenario. Despite best efforts, the Council is 
unable to get approval for any SIL release on the East Bank. The Council 
would therefore not proceed with development east of the River Lea 
Navigation with the important exception of the SEGRO e-commerce 
development which would still be delivered. The Council would sell its 
remaining landholdings on the East Bank (inclusive of Phoenix Wharf and 
VOSA) after ten years including the balance of the Stonehill land and the 
Hastingwood estate3. The outputs of Scenario 2 would be 6,000 homes and 
6,500 jobs delivered on the West Bank and via the SEGRO development. 

 
3.21 Scenario 3: Council does not buy Stonehill and Hastingwood 
 

The Scenario tests the impact on the financial model if the Council were to 
forgo the offer to acquire the Stonehill and Hastingwood Sites that is 
currently available. It assumes that any remaining Council owned land 
interests on the East Bank (Phoenix Wharf and VOSA) would be sold by 
June 2019 and Meridian Water development would terminate at the River 
Lea Navigation. The SEGRO e-commerce development would not be 

                                            
2
 Stonehill and Hastingwood Sites would themselves accommodate 2,200 of these homes. 

3
 The forecast value of sale in ten years incorporates a modest uplift in the value of the land of 

1%/annum  

Page 14



 

RE 17/14 P Part 1                                         7 

delivered.4 The outputs of Scenario 3 would be 6,000 homes and 4,500 
jobs. 

 
 
3.22 For each scenario, the Council and its technical advisers have provided 

financial inputs and assumptions to PwC for it to compare these alternative 
scenarios against the base financial model. The modelling shows, that even 
in the worst case scenario (Scenario 3), the Council would still expect to 
receive a capital return on its investment. 

 
3.23 Full financial summaries of the PwC modelling are provided in Part 2 of this 

report including a detailed breakdown of the assumptions behind each 
scenario. 

  
 
4 ALTERNATIVE OPTIONS CONSIDERED 
 
4.1 On 9th May, Cabinet agreed, subject to demonstration of overall viability, to 

proceed with the purchase of Stonehill and Hastingwood. 

4.2 The Cabinet report covered in detail alternative options that had been 
considered including: buying the Sites at a later date (ruled out due to the 
extremely high estimated cost of the Site once developed); compulsory 
acquisition (ruled out because CPO would not be supported by current 
planning policy) and a potential back-to-back agreement with SEGRO (ruled 
out because it would not be compliant with the competitive procurement 
process undertaken to select Barratt London as Master Developer, with 
SEGRO as its Commercial Partner).   

5 FINANCIAL GOVERNANCE 

5.1 Effective and robust financial governance, review and monitoring of the 
capital and revenue spends and incomes will be delivered using regular and 
effective financial management processes and systems. These will include: 
financial modelling, the use of financial KPIs to ensure income and 
expenditure remain on track and identifies problem areas, also trend 
analysis to assist with decision making and investment decisions. 

5.2 To ensure full rigour to the financial management processes and systems, 
the creation of a Meridian Water Finance Monitoring (MWFB) programme 
board is proposed, led by Finance. This will be a cross departmental group 
with representatives from property, legal etc. 

5.3 A detailed report will be brought to Cabinet in September describing the role 
of the board and the relationship between it and the other governance 
bodies such as the Housing Zone governance boards. 

5.4 Outline structures are: 

                                            
4
 Note that a “buy later” scenario (i.e. buy the Sites in ten years’ time) was ruled out in the Cabinet 

Report (KD 4442) due to the excessive cost of this option (please see Section 4.2) 

Page 15



 

RE 17/14 P Part 1                                         8 

5.4.1 That the MWFB will be responsible for monitoring the revenue and 
capital spend, revenue and capital incomes. They would also act as a 
filter for major investment decisions such as land acquisition. Terms 
of reference, meeting cycles etc. will be detailed in the report to the 
September Cabinet. 

5.4.2 It is proposed that the MWFB would be part of the Meridian Water – 
Housing Zone governance regime that already exists within the 
Council. Probably reporting to the Meridian Water Programme Board. 
Which in turn cascades upwards to the Housing Zone Programme 
Board, Housing Zone Strategic Group and Housing Zone Member 
Advisory Group. 

5.4.3 This will provide the ability for the Council to manage and monitor the 
significant spend and income levels involved using a combination of 
robust financial processes and systems combined with effective 
levels of governance. 

5.4.4 In preparation for the detailed governance report in September the 
current governance system has been mapped out and this is shown 
in Appendix 1. 

5.4.5 It includes two new groups which are the result of agreeing the MDFA 
with Barratt’s. The purpose of these groups are: 

5.4.5.1 Project Delivery Group – reviews and resolves day to day 
operational and financial issues that require immediate 
attention to avoid, or minimise delay to the project. The terms 
of reference, decision parameters and attendees are currently 
being finalised as part of the close process with Barratt’s. 

5.4.5.2 Partnership Group – primarily focused on the development 
and maintenance of effective and sound partnership 
relationship working between LBE and Barratt’s. This is 
viewed as a “principals” meeting and is likely to consist of the 
Leader, Cabinet Members, Chief Executive and Directors. 
Again, the structure, terms of reference and decision making 
are being scoped out as part of the MDFA with Barratt’s. 

 

6 REASONS FOR RECOMMENDATIONS 
 
The report recommends proceeding with the acquisition because both the base 
case and the worst case scenario demonstrate the overall viability of the Meridian 
Water Scheme. 
 
6.1 While the worst case scenario, of no-SIL release, will result in a reduced 

scheme, with fewer total outputs, it would still ensure that the Council had 
significant control over the land and future development of the East Bank, 

Page 16



 

RE 17/14 P Part 1                                         9 

crucial for securing a high quality, successful residential-led development on 
the West Bank. 

 

6.2 The testing of overall viability in the event of no-SIL release has been 
undertaken as a mitigation of the risk of no-SIL release. However, further to 
recent discussions with the GLA, it is strongly anticipated that full SIL 
release will be achievable on the East Bank in the medium term, on the 
basis of the agreed principal of “no-net loss of SIL” across the London 
Borough of Enfield, and in accordance with the GLA policy as stated in the 
London Plan of “managed release” of Strategic Industrial Land. 

 

 
 
7 COMMENTS OF THE DIRECTOR OF FINANCE, RESOURCES AND 

CUSTOMER SERVICES, AND OTHER DEPARTMENTS 
 
7.1 Financial Implications 
 

See Part 2 report. 
 
7.2 Legal Implications  

 
7.2.1 The Council has power under section1(1) of the Localism Act 2011 

to do anything that individuals generally may do provided it is not 
prohibited by legislation and subject to public law principles.  The 
recommendations detailed in this report are in accordance with the 
Council’s powers. 
 

7.2.2 The Council has a fiduciary duty to look after the funds entrusted to 
it and to ensure that its Council tax and ratepayers’ money is spent 
appropriately.  For that reason, the Council must carefully consider 
any project it embarks on to ensure that it is making decisions based 
on a proper assessment of risk and rewards/outcomes. 

 
  
7.3 Property Implications  

7.3.1 The council has received assurances that the cost of acquiring 
this site for industrial  use  is considered value for money . The 
Council in purchasing these properties will require assurance, 
provided by independent experts, that a comprehensive 
Development agreement is to be entered into with the agreed 
development Partner and that the costs of acquisition (including 
all Tax implications) sits within the financial parameters of the 
overall viability assessment for the comprehensive Meridian 
Water scheme. All future approvals in relation to operation, 
disposal and development of these sites should be required to be 
evaluated against the recommended Viability testing and should 
at all times comply with the councils landed property protocols. 

7.3.2  The valuation methodology used in calculating the value of this 

site is consistent with the best practice principles of acquiring 

Page 17



 

RE 17/14 P Part 1                                         10 

land through ‘Open Market’ negotiations. External valuations from 

two independent Firms confirm that the price being paid is within 

the normal boundaries of open market value and such valuations 

are in accordance with the ‘Red Book’ Valuation principles of the 

Royal institution of Chartered surveyors.  

  
7.3.3 The Council is purchasing these properties with the assurance , 

provided by independent experts, that a comprehensive 

Development agreement is to be entered into with the agreed 

development Partner and that the costs of acquisition ( including 

all Tax implications sit within the financial parameters of the 

overall viability assessment for the comprehensive Meridian 

Water scheme. 

  
7.3.4 Assurances have been provided from independent advisors 

having regard to the deliverability of the ‘Meanwhile’ uses  and 

income generation of the site. It is recommended that such 

advice should be carefully monitored and updated and risk 

assessed against expected return on monthly basis. 

 
7.3.5 All lettings / Meanwhile uses must comply with the Council’s Land 

and Property Protocols, and the Councils statutory 

responsibilities as Corporate landlord. All leases / tenancy 

agreements need to be structured to a protect the Meridian Water 

Development outcomes and incorporate ‘Development 

termination clauses. 

 
7.3.6 Recommendation that regular Viability testing is undertaking to 

assess on-going risk and changes to market conditions and 

affecting legislation in terms of national, GLA or local planning 

policies. 

 
 
8 KEY RISKS  

 

 
 

Risk – The proposed submission Edmonton Leeside Area Action Plan 
(ELAAP) is not adopted, and the Council is unable to release the SIL east of 
the River Lea Navigation for residential-led development. 

 
Risk Assessment – In response to the consultation on the precursor for the 
ELAAP (the CLAAP) in 2014, the GLA indicated in principle support for the 
partial release of 4.5 hectares of SIL in the East Bank of Meridian Water. 
While the current AAP proposes to go further by proposing full SIL release, 
this is supported by a substantial evidence base as to why this is necessary 
in order to deliver the desired outputs of homes and jobs, and protecting 
appropriate densities of development and place quality. Furthermore, 

Page 18



 

RE 17/14 P Part 1                                         11 

current discussions with the GLA have focused on the principle of “no-net 
loss of SIL” across the London Borough of Enfield. This report has 
introduced compromise mechanisms including the partial retention of SIL 
(SEGRO land) and proposed modifications to the ELAAP, and the Local 
Plan, to promote managed release of SIL in Meridian Water and 
compensatory designation of SIL elsewhere in Edmonton Leeside or in the 
Borough. It has also introduced the concept of a new designation with a new 
mixed-use typology with commercial at ground floor and residential on the 
upper floors that would also help mitigate the impact of proposed SIL 
release.  

 
Mitigation – In mitigation of this risk, the Council has modelled the scenario 
of no-SIL release and explored what would be the consequences of this 
scenario. These have been analysed financially through the Meridian Water 
financial model. This work, undertaken by PwC demonstrates that even in 
the worst case scenario, that no SIL is released, and development is 
reduced to the area west of the river, with the exception of the e-commerce 
SEGRO development, the Council would still be able to make a return on 
the scheme.  

 
As conversations with GLA progress, further analysis will be undertaken to 
investigate intermediate scenarios, including: 

 
(1) co-location of employment and residential uses i.e. ground floor 

employment and upper floor residential – a proposal which the GLA has 
already confirmed in meeting that they support in principle; and 
 

(2) increasing the density of housing development on the remaining 
Meridian Water site west of the River Lea Navigation. 

 
However as the worst case scenario, of a scaled down Meridian Water 
scheme, has been demonstrated to be viable, any intermediate option would 
only be pursued if could be shown that it improved the viability as well as the 
overall outputs of the project. 

 
9 IMPACT ON COUNCIL PRIORITIES  
 
9.1 The immediate acquisition of the Sites described in this Report would give 

the Council control over this important land holding, helping to realise the 
long-term aspiration for Meridian Water, taking development of new homes 
up to the Lee Valley Regional Park. The preferred Master Developer has 
now been selected and has begun work with the Council and the design 
team on progressing Meridian Water. This acquisition helps to open up new 
opportunities for developing the next stages of mixed use residential-led 
development after Zone 1, and provides an immediate opportunity to 
develop a pioneering e-commerce centre that will accommodate between up 
to 2,000 jobs. By offering employment opportunity in a range of salary 
brackets, and the opportunity for substantial housing development in the 
future, this stage of development will provide a concrete example of 

Page 19



 

RE 17/14 P Part 1                                         12 

achieving fairness for all, delivering sustainable growth and development of 
strong communities. 

 
 
 
 
10 EQUALITY IMPACT IMPLICATIONS  
 
10.1 The draft Masterplan was subject to an initial Equalities Impact 

Assessment/Analysis (EqIA) to ensure that consultation promoted equal 
opportunities.  During the master-planning process, demographic data was 
collected in relation to residents of Edmonton in order to determine which 
groups to target for community engagement and to also help assess the 
equalities issues the Masterplan proposals will need to consider.  

 
 
10.2 These issues were summarised in the final EqIA report that was reported to 

the Local Plan Cabinet Sub-Committee at its 11th September 2013 meeting. 
 
10.3 Any further equalities impact issues will be examined at the planning 

application stage on individual sites.  
 
 
11 PERFORMANCE MANAGEMENT IMPLICATIONS  
 
11.1 Delivery of a comprehensive regeneration scheme at Meridian Water is a 

corporate priority within the Council’s Business Plan for 2016-2018.  
Completion of the Masterplan and the delivery of phased infrastructure 
improvements including increased rail services, station improvements and 
new homes will help to meet the strategic priority: “a borough that attracts 
inward investment and supports sustainable regeneration and growth.” 

 
 
12 HEALTH AND SAFETY IMPLICATIONS 
 
12.1 There are no Public Health Implications directly arising from the acquisition 

of the Site pursuant to the terms of the Agreement but the intention to 
remediate and develop the Site when finally used for residential 
development is likely to have positive benefits.   

 
 
13. PUBLIC HEALTH IMPLICATIONS 
 
13.1 A component of the Meridian Water Masterplan concerns the need to 

improve access to healthy living corridors.  In accordance with the Core 
Strategy, all new areas brought forward for development will have 
appropriate provision of green space and parks, as well as sufficient access 
to new sports and health facilities to support the new communities. 

 

Page 20



 

RE 17/14 P Part 1                                         13 

Background Papers 
 
None  
 
Appendices 
 
Appendix 1 – Meridian Water Governance Map 

Page 21



This page is intentionally left blank



 

   

 

 

 

APPENDIX 2 
 

Signed Call in sheet and Reasons for Call-in  

& 
 

Briefing Report in response to called in 
decision (to follow) 

 

Page 23



This page is intentionally left blank



Page 25



Page 26



Document is Restricted

Page 27 Agenda Item 5



This page is intentionally left blank



Document is Restricted

Page 47



This page is intentionally left blank



Document is Restricted

Page 63



This page is intentionally left blank



Document is Restricted

Page 65



This page is intentionally left blank



Document is Restricted

Page 83
By virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.



This page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	3 CALL-IN OF REPORT: MERIDIAN WATER: LAND ACQUISITION
	Appendix 1  Meridian Water Land Acquisition
	Appendix 1 - Meridian Water Governance Map -
	Part 1 report Meridian Water Land Aquisition
	Appendix 2 - signed call in sheet and reasons for call in
	signed call in sheet and reasons for call-in

	5 Part 2 Agenda Call in Re: Meridian Water Land Acquisition
	Part 2 Appendix 1 JLL Meanwhile report
	Part 2 Appendix 2 - Cashflow Finance&Income
	Part 2 Appendix 3 - PwC Report
	Part 2 Response to reasons for call-in 17 0529 V1 Stonehill Acquisition Report- DAR - Response to Call-In


